1951

Pherrel Draper and Nell Fairbanks Draper et al v. J. B. and R. E. Walker, Inc. : Brief of Defendant and Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The entrance to Big Cottonwood Canyon in the Wasatch Mountains is approximately eighteen miles south of the city limits of Salt Lake City. As a result of prehistoric geological processes and the action of ancient Lake Bonneville, there was deposited at the entrance of the Canyon, an enormous amount of sand, gravel and other sedimentary soils. This deposit has been cut trans-

versly by Big Cottonwood Creek, and thereby a defile through the deposit was formed. This action concerns that part of the deposit which is situate north of the defile, and will be hereinafter referred to as "Walker Deposit" (Ex. 1, R. 90; R. 821).

Big Cottonwood Creek as it debouchs from the canyon gorge in the immediate vicinity of the Walker Deposit runs in a northerly and westerly direction (Ex. 1, R. 90).

The defendant is now and was at all times hereinafter mentioned a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Utah (R. 62, 821). One, Mary Goff Walker, is the fee simple owner of the Walker deposit and adjacent land (Ex. NNN, R. 951). Under an arrangement with Mary Goff Walker, which is only indirectly involved in this action (R. 951), the defendant was in possession of said deposit and land in the year 1946 and since that time has been continuously in possession of the same (R. 822). The Walker deposit is an immensely valuable source of sand and gravel for the manufacture of concrete and for the production of aggregate for use in the construction of roads and highways (R. 830, 831, 952). The material is considered the best and most effective produced in the western section of the United States (R. 950). The sand, gravel and road aggregate yielded by the Walker deposit enters into the economy of Salt Lake City and surrounding areas as necessary material in the construction industry (R. 952). It is of a highly desirable quality, and since the installation of its processing plant hereinafter

particularly described, defendant has been one of the major producers of sand and gravel products of the Salt Lake City area (R. 952).

The defendant is not the only operator and producer of sand and gravel products from the major deposits at the mouth of Big Cottonwood Canyon. There were on the date of the commencement of this action and for a considerable period of time prior thereto, nine other operations in this area (Ex. 25, R. 941; Ex. B, R. 323, 324). The following is a tabulation of these neighboring operations.

	<i>Name of Operation</i>	<i>Established</i>	<i>Distance from Walker Operations</i>
R 943	Huber and Davis	1930	2,000 ft.—air line
R 944	Elmo England	1950	2,500 ft.—air line
R 945	Salt Lake County	1946-47	3,000 ft.—air line
R 945-6	Cook and Osborne	1946	3,000 ft.—air line
R 946	Sims	1920	3,500 to 4,000 ft. —air line
R 947	Harper	1920	4,000 to 5,000 ft. —air line
R 948	Utah Sand & Gravel Co.	1950	6,000 ft.—air line
R 948	Barton	1949	Butlerville Hill
R 947	Abandoned		4,000 ft.—air line

In the month of June, 1946, defendant commenced the construction of its sand and gravel processing plant upon the Walker deposit and on the adjacent land (R. 97, 822). At time of trial it represented an investment of \$308,659.00 (R. 954). The plant is modern in every respect and was designed by a competent engineer (R. 895,

1263-1265). Installed therein are efficient mechanical devices which were new at the time they were acquired by the defendant (R. 1265). The method of handling and processing the raw material after it has been excavated from the mountainside involves the use of an extensive conveyor system which reduces dust (R. 1268). The type, construction and lay-out of the plant are well shown on Exhibit A, R. 96; Exhibit B, R. 98; and Exhibits 26, 27 and 28, R. 960. The machinery composing the plant are feeders (Exhibit 15, R. 870), jaw crushers (Exhibit 16, R. 871), vibrating screens (Exhibit 17, R. 872), roller crushers (Exhibit 18, R. 874) and the conveyors.

Wasatch Boulevard is a public highway extending along the base of the Wasatch Mountains in a general north and south direction. At the point where the defendant's plant is located the sand and gravel deposit is situate east of Wasatch Boulevard (Exhibit 1, R. 90). Wasatch Boulevard, in the immediate proximity of the defendant's plant, had been covered with an oil mat, but due to its deterioration was scarified in the year 1946 (R. 925). Work commenced to rebuild the boulevard in February, 1949 (R. 926). By August 1, 1950, the boulevard had been reconstructed and had been finished with a black top to a point immediately east of the Walker plant. There is evidence that prior to the black topping of this road that it produced a great amount of dust (R. 927).

The production of sand, gravel and road aggregate after the raw material has been excavated from the Walker deposit, requires the transportation of the mate-

rial to the rollers and crushers. Thereafter when the material is reduced to the required sizes through the process of crushing, segregation is effected by passing the material through screens of different meshes (Ex. 17, R. 872). Reference to Exhibits A, B, 26, 27, and 28, supra, will indicate to the reader exactly the location and function of the machinery and appliances above mentioned. At the time involved in this action the raw material was immediately removed from the Walker deposit by means of a drag line and was placed on a conveyor belt which carried it to an elevated point east of Wasatch Boulevard and at the edge of the vehicular surface thereof (R. 828, 852). At that point it was dropped perpendicularly through a cylinder or "elephant trunk" to a "grizzly" or screen located on the east side of the hard surfaced area of the boulevard (R. 828, 829). It passed through a "grizzly" and dropped onto a moving belt which is located in a tunnel constructed transversly under Wasatch Boulevard. This tunnel containing the conveyor belt was constructed by permission of the Board of County Commissioners of Salt Lake County (R. 822). Material dropping on to this subterranean belt was carried through the tunnel under Wasatch Boulevard into the jaw crusher (R. 829), where it was crushed and ground to reduced sizes (R. 877). Thereafter by passage through a series of roller crushers and screens, the material is sorted and automatically finds it way on to conveyor belts. These conveyor belts operate within steel

channels or tracks and serve to convey the material to the exterior limits of the conveyors where it is dropped to the stock piles above mentioned (Ex. 1, R. 849, 850).

It will be noticed by reference to the exhibits above mentioned, that the Walker deposit itself, Wasatch Boulevard and the jaw crusher are located at an elevation fixed by various witnesses at approximately 75 feet (R. 849), above the level of the pit floor (R. 850).

There are two types of crushers in use at this plant. The first is the jaw crusher which stands on the west side of Wasatch Boulevard and is a prominent object in the aforesaid exhibits (R. 871). The second type is known as the roller crusher (R. 874). This roller crusher weighs about 15,000 pounds (R. 888) and is composed of two rollers (R. 881). One of them is of smooth surface and its twin is heavily corrugated. The corrugations are pyramidal in shape (R. 879). Material is run between the corrugated and smooth surface roller which rapidly revolve each in opposite direction and the material is thereby crushed (R. 881). The corrugations on the rough surface roller become flattened or worn from the friction of material against it in the process of crushing (R. 881). It is therefore necessary to "build up" these corrugations and this is effected by welding metallic substances thereto (R. 881-883). During this welding process the plant must necessarily cease operations and as a consequence welding has been done principally at night (R. 887). It is an electric process whereby the added metallic substance is reduced to a molten state by a current of electricity passing through it which melts it and affixes it

to the roller (R. 882-884). This welding process necessarily produces flashes of light when the electrified metallic substance makes contact with the roller to which it is to be welded (R. 886). The flash is but momentary (R. 886). In adding the molten material to the roller there are formed "beads" on the roller (R. 890). The "slag" on the face of these "beads" must be knocked off before other molten material is added (R. 890). The "slag" is an oxidization of certain of the material included in the molten welding rod which form, like "dross" on a lead pot when lead is being melted. Before contact can be established with the newly welded material this "dross" or "slag" must be knocked off with a small hammer (Exhibit 14, R. 891). The noise produced by this pounding is limited (R. 892), and merely involves the knocking off of the "slag" (R. 892). The smooth roller as a result of the friction created by its action on the raw material becomes worn and uneven and must also be built up by a similar process (R. 882).

The defendant in its welding operations used two types of welders. One is a gasoline welder which is powered through a gas engine. It is a portable machine which can be used about the plant (R. 888). The second type of welder is an electric welder which is merely a set of rectifiers to change the power from AC to DC, with a fan to circulate air through it. The noise produced by this welder is similar to that of an electric fan (R. 887).

The finished product consisting of sand, gravel and road base material is stocked in separate piles, conical in shape, as shown on the exhibits to which reference is

above made. It is from these stock piles that the completed product is taken for transportation and sale. The transportation is by means of motor trucks which are driven to the immediate vicinity of the stock piles and there loaded. The road base material is loaded by means of a drag line (Ex. 22, R. 906). On Exhibit 1 (R. 905) is shown an underground tunnel approximately 460 feet long marked "S-T". The stock piles of concrete aggregate are accumulated on top of this tunnel. Within the tunnel is a conveyor belt and the concrete aggregate is introduced from the stock piles into the tunnel and onto the conveyor belt where it is transported to the northeasterly end of the tunnel. At that point the material drops onto a loading belt which conveys it into the trucks (R. 904, 905, 906).

In October 1948, excavation for the Deer Creek Aqueduct of the Metropolitan Water District commenced in the area of defendant's plant (R. 919, 921). The nature of this excavation is graphically shown in the following photographs: Exhibit 2 (R. 911), Exhibit 3 (R. 911), Exhibit 4 (R. 912), Exhibit 5 (R. 914), Exhibit 6 (R. 914) and Exhibit 7 (R. 918). The conduit excavation or trench in which the concrete aqueduct was placed varied from fifteen to thirty feet in depth (R. 919). The bottom of the trench was approximately twelve by fourteen feet in width and the top was about fifty feet wide (R. 920). The material removed from the trench was piled along its sides and this spilled material attained a considerable height and breadth (R. 920). The excavation of the part of the trench extending from Wasatch Boulevard

southwesterly through defendant's pit floor and up to the Butlerville Hill commenced on June 27th, 1949. Prior to that time, the work was conducted northeast of Wasatch Boulevard and southeast of Butlerville Hill road. From June 27, 1949 until the latter part of November, 1949, the work of excavating the trench and constructing the aqueduct continued through the land in possession of defendant (R. 921). Heavy machinery and equipment were used in effecting this excavation (R. 921, 922), and as a consequence a tremendous amount of dust was created. There was a cloud of dust over the area during the entire time that the equipment was in operation (R. 922). In excavating this aqueduct trench, it was necessary to build two "shoofly" roads. One of them extended from the top of Butlerville Hill down its slope to permit construction equipment to reach the aqueduct right of way (R. 923; Exhibit 24; R. 924; R. 925), and the other was a bypass on the county road on Butlerville Hill. During the time of this construction, the natural vegetation along the line of the aqueduct trench and the temporary roads was destroyed and the removal of such vegetation allowed sudden gusts of wind to pick up dust from the devastated areas and carry it into the air (R. 923, Exhibit 24; R. 929).

Big Cottonwood Highway, a public road which has existed for a number of years, runs adjacent to the pit floor. It had been previously an improved highway, but in 1946, it had so deteriorated that the top had been scarified and in fact became a gravel highway. It remained in that condition until approximately September 1st,

1947. During the construction of Deer Creek Aqueduct, it was again torn up where it passed adjacent to defendant's pit floor. From June 27th, 1949, to the time that the work on the aqueduct on Butlerville Hill was completed, this road was in a dilapidated condition and remained so until November of 1949 (R. 932). It produced a great amount of dust (R. 934).

The plaintiffs were at the time of the commencement of this action, and for several years prior thereto, the owners of residences situate adjacent to the land of which defendant was in possession. The location of these homesites with reference to defendant's operations is shown upon Exhibit NNN (R. 566), which is a plat of this area reproduced from the Salt Lake County deed records. The plaintiffs acquired these properties at the approximate times shown on the following schedule:

<i>Name of Plaintiff</i>	<i>Date of Acquisition of Property</i>
Pherrel Draper and Nell Fairbanks Draper (R. 91)	1936 or 1937
J. B. Dunn and Juliet Crisman Dunn, (R. 412)	1933
Jack C. Dunn and Gladys Wiley Dunn Glen Draper and Lorna F. Draper,	Dec., 1947
R. L. Reinsimar and Margaret Draper Reinsimar, (R. 327 and R. 431)	May, 1937
Ernest J. Pedler and Virinia A. Pedler (R. 448, R. 562)	July, 1944
Henry L. Butler and Vivienne Draper Butler (R. 567)	1937
Charels P. Rudd and Gladys M. Rudd (R. 567)	1924

The plaintiffs Butler, sold and conveyed their residential property in August, 1950, (R. 523), which was after the date of the commencement of this action, to-wit: October 18, 1949, (R. 6).

The aerial photographs introduced in evidence, Exhibit A (R. 96), Exhibit B (R. 98), Exhibits ZZZ and Exhibits YYY (R. 1569), will reveal an area south and west of defendant's plant which is tree planted. This is the area within which the plaintiffs' residences are situate. These aerial photographs may be sychronized with Exhibit 1 (R. 90 and R. 665-673), which is a map upon which is delineated and marked these respective homes. The plaintiff Draper owns three houses marked respectively, PD1, PD2 and PD3, on Exhibit 1 (R. 95 and 96). The houses of the other plaintiffs are appropriately marked on Exhibit 1 so that same may be identified.

This action was commenced and prosecuted by the plaintiffs against the defendant for the purpose of securing an injunction restraining defendant "from maintaining or using said gravel pit or processing plant" on the ground that the operation of the same constituted a nuisance by reason of the fact that defendant in the removal of the sand and gravel and the processing of the same as hereinbefore described "causes considerable dust to rise and settle upon the lands and homes of plaintiffs, and by the movement of such rocks and dirt and the stockpiling of the resulting sand and gravel, the roads, lanes, and creek located upon the lands of plaintiffs, and in the vicinity thereof, have become obstructed" (R. 2). Further the plaintiffs alleged "that the operation of

said gravel pit and processing plant as aforesaid, in the manner operated by the defendant, is injurious to the health of plaintiffs, and offensive to their senses and an obstruction to the free use of and access to their property, so as to interfere with their comfortable enjoyment of life, and their property, contrary to the laws and statutes of the State of Utah * * *."

The plaintiffs particularize and describe of the alleged nuisance by alleging:

(a) That dust is deposited on the natural vegetation on plaintiffs' land, which is detrimental thereto, and the natural beauty of said homes and lands is thereby destroyed.

(b) That dust from the plant infiltrates into the homes of the plaintiffs and is deposited upon the furniture and household effects and food.

(c) The operation of defendant's plant results in loud noises which disturb plaintiffs in their sleep and normal affairs of life.

(d) That the operation of the welding machines produces light and noise prohibiting rest and sleep (R. 4).

Of particular concern in this action are certain allegations contained in the complaint with respect to the alleged obstruction of roads and lanes. The following pertinent excerpts are therefore set out:

"That in the operation of said gravel plant aforesaid, defendant causes huge rocks and boulders to be rolled down the mountainside, and

moves great quantities of dirt * * * and by the movement of such rocks and dirt, and the stockpiling of the resulting sand and gravel, the roads, lanes, and creek located upon the lands of plaintiffs, and in the vicinity thereof, have become obstructed."

(Par. 6 Complaint, R. 2).

"That in the operation of said gravel plant aforesaid, defendant has caused rocks, boulders, and dirt to be rolled down the mountainside and has changed the terrain from its original state, and has dug away the roads and placed huge stockpiles of sand and gravel, so that defendant has blocked and made parts of plaintiffs' property inaccessible, by obstructing right-of-ways, paths, and other means of ingress and egress to the property of plaintiffs, thereby damaging the same, and rendering said properties of no value as homes, or for any purpose."

(Par. 7, Complaint, R. 3).

"That the operation of said gravel pit and processing plant, as aforesaid, in the manner operated by defendant is * * *, an obstruction to the free use of and access to their property."

(Par. 8, Complaint, R. 3).

During the trial the plaintiffs were permitted to serve and file an amendment to their complaint (R. 35), which alleged:

"c. Without limiting the generality of the nuisance here complained of, as defined by 104-56-1 U.C.A. 1943, plaintiffs alleged:

"That the various operations, as described, and the piling and the piles of sand and gravel constitute an attraction and attractive nuisance, and the loading and caving in are a serious danger

to children who are attracted thereto, which interferes with the safe and comfortable enjoyment of plaintiffs' properties, and lessens the personal enjoyment thereof by plaintiffs, or others, residing therein.

"That the conditions caused, and as in this paragraph 8 referred to, are offensive to the senses and injurious to the health of the occupants of the properties of plaintiffs, as herein involved and described."

Defendant answers the complaint and the foregoing amendment by denial (R. 20, 21, 49) and pleaded the defense of acquiescence by the plaintiffs in the construction and erection of defendant's sand and gravel plant and alleged that plaintiffs by their conduct were estopped from asserting and claiming the operation of said plant is a nuisance (R. 50). Plaintiffs, by their reply denied the affirmative defense of defendant (R. 51).

At the conclusion of the trial, the court made, entered and filed its findings of fact and conclusions of law. For the convenience of the Appellate Court, the appellant inserts herein the pertinent and material parts of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and the Judgment.

"FINDINGS OF FACT

1. That plaintiffs are all residents of Salt Lake County, State of Utah, and that defendant is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Utah, and duly qualified to do business in said State.

2. That defendant, a Utah corporation, owns, and, in the course of its business, engages in the operation of what is commonly known and described as a gravel pit and sand and gravel processing plant. That said gravel pit and business, conducted thereat, is located at the mouth of Big Cottonwood Canyon in Salt Lake County, Utah, in the vicinity of the common section corner to Sections 23, 24, 25 and 26, Township 2 South, Range 1 East.

3. That defendant, by use of heavy machinery and equipment, removes rocks, sand, dirt, and gravel from the mountainside North and West of premises owned and occupied by plaintiffs, and processes the same through the use of crushers, graders, conveyor belts, screens, and other heavy machinery, into sand, gravel, and similar products for commerical use. That said sand and gravel is conveyed, crushed, sorted, and stocked into huge piles on the premises, until sold or removed by defendant, in the due course of its business.

4. That, in its removal, processing, and storage of sand and gravel, there is emitted into the atmosphere large quantities of dust, dirt, and sediment which are carried intermittently by the prevailing natural air currents from the plant and premises occupied by the defendant corporation, aforesaid, and deposited upon the land, homes, and effects of plaintiffs.

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