1952

Pherrel Draper and Nell Fairbanks Draper et al v. J. B. and R. E. Walker, Inc. : Brief of Plaintiffs and Respondents Rudds

Utah Supreme Court

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

**AT PRE-TRIAL NO ISSUE OF THE RIGHT OF
ACCESS WAS RAISED**

The issue which the court found from the pleadings was (R. 30) :

“ . . . whether the operations of the defendant constitute or result in a nuisance . . . ”

This was stipulated by the parties as the issue to be tried. (R. 31)

Again the defendant waived any issue as to plaintiffs' authority to use the right-of-way and contented itself with taking the negative of the issue, that its operations in blocking and interfering with the “rights-of-way” and “other means of ingress and egress” constituted a nuisance. That was the dispute between the parties and so it remained up until the sixth day of trial. There was no dispute as to whether plaintiffs had a right-of-way, by necessity or grant, in company with all the public or otherwise, but only as to whether defendant interfered with the passage and whether that constituted a nuisance.

It is submitted that the time to frame the issues so as to require Plaintiffs to specify whether the right they claimed was a private right and whether it has held by

prescription or necessity, had passed without defendant raising the question. This would also seem to dispose of appellant's Point I, but there is still a further waiver by defendant.

ALL OBJECTION TO THE TRIAL OF THE ISSUE OF A RIGHT-OF-WAY WAS WAIVED

This was done by permitting the introduction of evidence on the matter without objection.

This is governed by Rule 15 (b) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure which reads as follows:

“(b) AMENDMENTS TO CONFORM TO THE EVIDENCE. When issues not raised by the pleadings are tried by express or implied consent of the parties, they shall be treated in all respects as if they had been raised in the pleadings. Such amendment of the pleadings as may be necessary to cause them to conform to the evidence and to raise these issues may be made upon motion of any party at any time, even after judgment; *but failure so to amend does not affect the result of the trial of these issues.* If evidence is objected to at the trial on the ground that it is not within the issues made by the pleadings, the court may allow the pleadings to be amended when the presentation of the merits of the action will be subserved thereby and the objecting party fails to satisfy the court that the admission of such evidence would prejudice him in maintaining his action or defense upon the merits. The court shall grant a continuance, if necessary, to enable the objecting party to meet such evidence.” (Emphasis added.)

Concerning similar rule in the Federal practice it is said in Moore Federal Practice:

“At the trial, Rule 15 enables the case to be litigated on the merits. It does this in two ways: (a) in effect pleadings are automatically amended to conform to proof on issues tried by express or implied consent.’ . . . The sporting element in litigation is eliminated.”

And in note 9, referred to in the text, we read:

“9. This is true because Rule 15 (b) provides: ‘Such amendment of the pleadings as may be necessary to cause them to conform to the evidence and to raise these issues may be made upon motion of any party at any time, even after judgment; but failure so to amend does not affect the result of the trial of these issues.’ ” (3 Moore Federal Practice (Rev. Ed.) p. 805, sec. 15.02)

Now did defendant impliedly consent to the trial of the issue of a road, right-of-way or other means of ingress and egress? Defendant maintains in his brief that it did not impliedly consent but objected throughout the trial. The transcript does not bear out this assertion. The following evidence on the subject of roads, rights-of-way and other means of access was introduced without objection:

(R. 209, line 10) (By Mr. J. Richard Mulliner.)

“Q. Now Mr. Draper, you have lived around this place since—been acquainted with it since about 1929. Is that your testimony here?

A. Yes, that is right.

Q. Now are you acquainted — I will ask you if in 1929 you know by what means of access, what the means of access was to — egress to and access from the home, to and from the home, which is now the Pedler home?

- A. The only way they could get into their home was entering in from the highway at the Old Mill Club property and then traveling to the south and east along toward the Old Mill Club Reservoir and entering through a gate there into the Pedler home.
- Q. Would you describe this roadway if you will?
- A. This roadway was a well defined roadway properly kept up because it was the only means of getting into the Pedler property.
- Q. Do you have any present recollection of this roadway in 1929?
- A. Yes.
- Q. What is that, what facts bring that to your mind at the present time?
- A. I worked for the Old Mill Club at that time, and one of our duties was to keep the leaves and shrubs out of the springs that furnish the water to the Old Mill Club, and I would go up there at least two or three times a week in the performance of that duty.
- Q. In 1929 was this roadway kept up?
- A. Yes.
- Q. And for how long was this road open if you recall?
- A. Well, I remember this road there in 1926. My wife and I used to drive up to that spring on our week-end days and get water cress out of that spring.
- Q. And in 1926 was there a well defined roadway?
- A. Yes, the only difference was then there was a bridge across the Old Mill Club race and that was in rather bad shape, but I think that was fixed up in the spring of 1929.

GENERAL RITER: Mr. Mulliner, will you

invite my attention to the allegations concerning this roadway in your complaint?

MR. J. RICHARD MULLINER: Yes, sir. Your interrogatories direct—

THE COURT: I didn't get that last date.

(The last answer was read by the Reporter.)

MR. J. RICHARD MULLINER: With reference to the rights of ingress and egress.

THE COURT: You are reading from the interrogatories.

GENERAL RITER: I don't believe those interrogatories raise the issues.

MR. J. RICHARD MULLINER: I just want to show it is in the complaint some place.

GENERAL RITER: I want you to point out to me where that allegation is that you are directing your interrogation.

MR. J. RICHARD MULLINER: Paragraph seven about changing the terrain from its original state.

(Mr. Mulliner read Paragraph seven in the complaint.)

GENERAL RITER: Thank you very much.

Q. (By Mr. J. Richard Mulliner) Is that road way in existence at the present time, Mr. Draper?

A. Well, the gravel fill is used there up as far as the stock piles.

Q. By gravel fill do you mean J. B. and R. E. Walker, Incorporated?

A. Yes, but from there on it is obstructed.

Q. And how is it obstructed?

A. Well, these stock piles obstruct it in the beginning.

GENERAL RITER: Now if the Court please, I wanted this interrogation to get along that far

to give me a chance to make my record and object. There is no evidence to show that Pedler or any of the plaintiffs had any right to use that roadway.

THE COURT: There is no evidence showing that there is a right-of-way.

GENERAL RITER: No evidence showing there is a right-of-way.

THE COURT: The Court will grant that.

GENERAL RITER: I move to strike this entire evidence at this time because there must be evidence to show their right to use it, and the records, as they now stand, show there has been no right, no title.

MR. J. RICHARD MULLINER: I expect to tie that up, your Honor.

THE COURT: The motion will be taken under advisement. The Court will determine whether or not there is any evidence on the subject before ruling on it.

Q. (By J. Richard Mulliner) I show you the third picture in Plaintiffs' Exhibit RR and will ask you if any part of that right-of-way is visible on that photograph?

A. Yes.

Q. Would you indicate where with relation to objects on that photograph the right-of-way of this roadway was?

A. That entered just to the right of the stop sign and went up through where you see the dust.

Q. That was the original roadway proceeding there in 1926, was it?

A. Yes.

Q. And has it existed to your own knowledge ever since 1926?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, if you will state, Mr. Draper,—

GENERAL RITER: Can I look at that a minute, please?

THE COURT: You didn't show the nature of these obstacles.

MR. J. RICHARD MULLINER: I was just getting to that.

Q. (By Mr. J. Richard Mulliner) Now would you state again what are the nature of the obstacles to this roadway there at the present time?

A. Well, the stock piles obstruct the road where it existed, and then just as you get to the northwest corner of the Pedler property there has been a ditch dug through there and large boulders at that point making it inaccessible to the Rudd's property.

Q. Is it possible now to drive on this real old road, from the Old Mill, where this old road used to take off the Cottonwood Highway to the Pedler property or to properties east of there?

A. No.

Q. The sand piles that you spoke of are the sand piles at the end of the conveyor belt that appear on Exhibit I?

A. Yes.

Q. And they are built over this roadway?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know when it was first obstructed?

A. As near as I can remember it was the summer of '46.

GENERAL RITER: If the Court please, so that I won't keep irritating everybody my objection, of course, runs to this entire line of testimony and may the record so show.

THE COURT: As to the obstacle of this roadway to the Pedler property?

GENERAL RITER: As to the testimony pertaining to this road.

THE COURT: It may show that. The objection is overruled.

Q. (By Mr. J. Richard Mulliner) Is it possible at the present time for a vehicle to proceed from the turn off point down by the Old Mill on the Cottonwood Highway up through the Walker Plant to the Pedler and Dunn homes, Rudd homes I should say?

A. It would depend on how far they went. It might be possible to get a car in there, but the road as it existed is plugged up.

THE COURT: By that you mean they may drive in there but not on the old road. By that you mean they might, they could get a car into the Pedler property of the Old Mill, but not on the old road?

THE WITNESS: No, it would be possible to get a car in, but they wouldn't get a car in like they did.

Q. (By Mr. J. Richard Mulliner) Is there any defined road at all there you could see?

A. After you leave the corner of the Pedler property where it is plugged off, you can see the road from there, leading on from there, to the Rudd property, and also you can see it from the Old Mill entrance up to the stock piles.

Q. By that you mean you can see road from Pedler's property east to the Old—

A. Yes.

Q. And from the Old Mill up to the stock pile.

A. Yes.

Q. Is there any right-of-way or anything discern-

able over the Walker property, the lower plant property itself to the stock pile?

- A. No, they might swerve around there in some manner, but as far as the road is concerned it is blocked off."

It is to be noted that the testimony that this road was the only way they could get into their property (R. 209, line 18) was introduced without objection. It was further testified that the road was well defined and had in existence in 1926. It was at this point that the appellant inquired as to where the allegations in the complaint as to the roadway were to be found and that when paragraph 7 was pointed out, counsel for Appellant still made no objection (R. 211, line 4) and it was not until further evidence was introduced as to the obstruction of the right of way that an objection was made. Certainly it can't be claimed that this evidence concerning the road, its antiquity, location, appearance and obstruction which was testified to, was introduced over the objection of the appellant. There was no objection at all until appellant protested as follows:

"GENERAL RITER: Now if the Court please, I wanted this interrogation to get along that far to give me a chance to make my record and object. There is no evidence here to show that Pedler or any of the plaintiffs had any right to use that roadway.

THE COURT: There is no evidence showing there is a right-of-way.

GENERAL RITER: No evidence showing there is a right-of-way." (R. 211, line 13).

And even when an objection was raised as to the testimony, it was not that the evidence was outside of the issues but rather that there was at that time no evidence that the plaintiffs had a right to use that roadway or that a right-of-way existed. But there was no objection to the litigation of that issue.

Later (R. 213, line 9) appellant stated that the "objection, of course, runs to this entire line of testimony" and again (R. 213, line 14) "As to the testimony pertaining to this road." But the objection which it is sought to have run to all subsequent questions is not as to whether the pleadings were broad enough to support the issue of a right-of-way or road or access over this property used by the appellant. The objection adopted was merely that (R. 211, line 15) "There is no evidence here to show that . . . the plaintiffs had a right to use that roadway . . . (R. 211, line 19) no evidence showing there is a right of way." (It is to be noted that in appellant's brief no effort is made to rest on this premature objection, that there was no evidence of a right-of-way nor that plaintiffs had a right to use it.)

Later further evidence of the road, right-of-way, or means of access was introduced without objection. On the third day of trial Mr. Reinsimar testified that he remembered the road in 1912 (R. 342, line 16); and that it ran up to Rudds (R. 342, line 20); that it was an old road then (R. 342, line 27) and he further described it (R. 343). Still there was no objection that the nuisance result-

ing from obstruction of the right of way, was not within the issues.

Mr. J. B. Dunn testified he remembered the road between the Old Mill and Rudds as far back as 1929 (R. 372). He was cross examined concerning its location (R. 375).

Mr. Henry Butler testified on the fourth day of the trial, without objection, that he remembered the road as far back as 1918 (R. 520 and 521) and that it went up to the Rudd cabin from the parking lot at the Old Mill.

On the same day the following remarks were made (R.572, line 23) :

“GENERAL RITER: What are your contentions?

MR CLAWSON: *That we have a way of necessity; we have a way on prescriptive right, and possibly it is a public road under County ordinances.*

GENERAL RITER: You haven't plead the County ordinances.

MR. CLAWSON: We may have to.” (Emphasis added.)

Here, clearly, was the contention made that the way might be claimed as one of necessity. Yet there was no objection that such a way was not within the issues.

Charles Rudd testified one couldn't get into his cabin, except over this road (R. 580, line 24) but there was still no objection.

Glen Rudd testified that the road ran from the Old Mill to the Rudd property and that there was no other

way of getting in (R. 584) and that it was an old road when he remembered it first (R. 585).

It was not until after all of this testimony was received, and on the sixth day of trial, November 1, 1950, that the first objection was made wherein it was claimed that the right-of-way was not within the issues (R. 651, line 14).

So we submit that appellant did not object to the trial of the issue of roads, rights-of-way and means of access but contented itself by merely objecting (R. 209, line 10 et seq.), after the ground had been substantially covered without objecting; that respondent had not, up to that time, shown a right to use this road or that there was a right-of-way (R. 211).

Under Rule 15b of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, the enlarging of the issues is permitted. If such action prejudiced the appellant, a continuance would have been granted. No continuance was sought. And the trial lasted from October 23rd to November 29th with numerous interruptions in the five week interval. Appellants can't say they have been prejudiced. This is merely a point made on appeal, one which was not of sufficient importance to raise before or during the trial of this case.

Point No. 2 (found on page 54 of Appellant's brief, raises the question of the adjudication of the question of a right of way without the presence of one of the principal stockholders of appellant (paragraph 3 of Ex. UUU) and the wife of the president of the appellant. This is merely another way of saying that a non joinder is claimed.

**NON JOINDER IS WAIVED BY FAILING TO RAISE
THE POINT UNLESS THE PARTY IS INDISPENSABLE
THE OWNER WAS NOT INDISPENSABLE.**

In the case of *In Re Thompson's Estate*, 269 P. 103, 108; 72 Utah 17, this court (Justice Straup speaking) said:

“The assignment that the widow ought to have been made a party is overruled. Under our Code, defect of parties is something to be taken advantage of by special demurrer or by answer. The special demurrers were on grounds of ambiguity and uncertainty, and not on grounds of defect or want of parties. Nor was the matter raised by answer. Unless raised by demurrer or by answer, the defect was waived. Nor do we see wherein the widow was a proper, much less a necessary or indispensable party.”

And in *Buhler v. Maddison*, 166 P. 2d 205, 212; 109 Utah 245, this court said:

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